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          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: My name is

          3  Christine Quinn, and I'm Chair of the Council's

          4  Health Committee, and we're going to begin our

          5  Health Committee, and I'm sorry for folks who have

          6  been waiting. The Government Operations Committee

          7  went over today and we have four or five hearing

          8  rooms, all of which are in use at the moment. So, we

          9  couldn't move across the street.

         10                 If folks could just take their

         11  conversations outside, and if you could close the

         12  door in the back, that would be helpful. Thank you.

         13                 I am joined by Council Member Yvette

         14  Clarke, a member of the Health Committee from

         15  Brooklyn, and we'll be joined by other members in a

         16  minute that are at other hearings.

         17                 We are having a hearing today on two

         18  pieces of legislation, and also a vote on a

         19  resolution.

         20                 Let me just start by mentioning the

         21  Resolution, which is not actually related to the

         22  other two topics, it's a little bit of housekeeping.

         23                 When we get a quorum we will take a

         24  break and vote for a second on Resolution 88,

         25  sponsored by Council Member Peter Vallone. Folks
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          2  might remember we had a hearing on this resolution a

          3  couple of months ago jointly with the Housing and

          4  Buildings Committee.

          5                 The Resolution is calling upon the

          6  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene to study the

          7  long-term effects of living and working in multiple

          8  antennas and base stations, those are the cell

          9  towers. The Housing Committee is going to be voting

         10  on the legislation that relates to this in their

         11  Committee.

         12                 Council Member Vallone did just call

         13  me and wanted me to extend his apologies to the

         14  Committee. Some people might have seen on television

         15  last night that Astoria was under water. It's his

         16  district so he's a little busy following up with

         17  that, and apologizes for not being here.

         18                 Two pieces of legislation which we

         19  are having our first hearings on today are Intro.

         20  465 and 498. 498 is a bill which we have termed

         21  Jazzy's Law, and we want to thank Cindy Adams, who

         22  is with us today, for making the need for this bill

         23  clear to the Council. I particularly want to thank

         24  Speaker Miller for putting this issue on the Health

         25  Committee's agenda.

                                                            5

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 You know, I'm embarrassed to say that

          3  I did not know that what we're calling for in 498

          4  wasn't the law. Because I have a dog and when I got

          5  that dog, I called a kennel, doggy day care, as I

          6  refer to it affectionately, to say when I bring,

          7  when can Sadie, that's the dog, start going there

          8  and what paperwork do I need to provide you? And I

          9  don't remember, the said either she has to be either

         10  four or five months old and you have to come and

         11  bring the documentation from the veterinarian about

         12  all the shots that she had had.

         13                 So, that seemed very fair and

         14  responsible and appropriate. I incorrectly assumed

         15  that was the standard everywhere. Obviously that

         16  should be the standard everywhere, that when dogs

         17  are going to go to a kennel or a facility where

         18  they're going to be interacting with others,

         19  spending time with other dogs, we should know that

         20  the dogs are healthy and have had the vaccinations

         21  that they need and are in most cases required to

         22  have by law.

         23                 498 will set that standard and give a

         24  piece of mind to pet owners that when they take

         25  their dog, their family pet to a facility like that,
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          2  the health of that dog will be protected and that

          3  they will not be at risk of contracting or

          4  contracting illnesses from other dogs who have not

          5  had vaccinations.

          6                 It takes really the reality of the

          7  risk and the guesswork of not knowing what another

          8  dog owner has done out of the equation in a way to

          9  make sure we're protecting the health of animals and

         10  also setting the appropriate consumer standard in

         11  this City for the type of facilities, kennels, dog

         12  day cares, et cetera, that we are running.

         13                 We're also going to hear today

         14  testimony on Intro. 465, introduced by Council

         15  Member Moskowitz, which has also been kind of dubbed

         16  the "dog-on-dog violence bill."

         17                 I know I have received many

         18  complaints in my office about dogs who have been

         19  attacked by other dogs, and what we found out, up

         20  until very recently there was no legal recourse for

         21  pet owners in that situation, either really on the

         22  City or State level.

         23                 If a dog bites a person there is

         24  recourse you can take. But if a dog attacks another

         25  dog even very, very seriously, there is no City
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          2  legal recourse that one can take to get punishment

          3  and the follow-up that should happen if there is a

          4  dangerous dog like that out there particularly in a

          5  residential neighborhood.

          6                 Recently the State did pass some

          7  legislation on this issue. It is even more important

          8  now that we have a clear City legislative standard

          9  that gives appropriate legal recourse for pet owners

         10  and residents when something like this happens.

         11                 I want to say we've been joined by

         12  Council Member Helen Sears of Queens, a member of

         13  the Committee, Council Member James Oddo of Staten

         14  Island, a member of the Committee, and the Minority

         15  Leader. And we have quorum, so we are going to

         16  quickly take a vote on Reso 88, and I just want to

         17  say Council Member Vallone, it's his resolution.

         18  It's the resolution urging the Department of Health

         19  to do a study on the long-term effects of living and

         20  working near multiple antennas and base stations,

         21  the cell towers.

         22                 The Housing Committee is going to be

         23  voting on their legislation as well in the next week

         24  or so, both the resolutions and the laws will be to

         25  the same upcoming stated. Peter couldn't be with us
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          2  here today because of a watermain rupture in his

          3  district and asked me to apologize.

          4                 So, if the clerk could call the roll

          5  on Reso 88 and then we'll hear from the Department

          6  of Health and Mental Hygiene on the other two pieces

          7  of legislation.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Quinn.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I vote aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Clarke.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I vote aye.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: May I explain

         14  my vote, Madam Chair?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Yes, of course.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I do vote yes,

         17  but I just wish to say that hopefully this can be

         18  done as quickly as possible. I happen to have a

         19  major problem with these cell bases and antennas in

         20  my district, and I actually got to a rooftop to look

         21  at all of them, and I can tell you that we were

         22  advised to be no more than eight minutes in front of

         23  the cell. Now, I find that extraordinary, yet I keep

         24  hearing that they are not dangerous.

         25                 So, I don't buy that because I don't
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          2  think anybody has really done a DEIS on it.

          3                 So, I happened to have stayed ten

          4  minutes in front and I got chastised for doing that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You look a little

          6  glowy, I have to say.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So I'm

          8  delighted that this is happening, and I hope it

          9  moves along very quickly.

         10                 Thank you. Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes. And may I

         13  ask that my name be added as a co-sponsor?

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of four in

         15  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         16  abstentions, the item is adopted. Council members,

         17  please sign the Committee report.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And if we could

         19  keep the roll open, because I know Council Member

         20  Stewart is in the building, but in another hearing.

         21  Maybe we could ask Council Member Stewart to come

         22  in. And why don't you guys get started. And again,

         23  thank you for your patience.

         24                 Whoever wants to go first, just

         25  identify yourself for the record before you start
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          2  testifying.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Okay.

          4  My name is Edgar Butts. I am Assistant Commissioner

          5  for Veterinary and Pest Control Services for the

          6  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene. I have with

          7  me today Mr. Ed Boyce (phonetic), who is Assistant

          8  Director --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm just going to

         10  interrupt you for one second. We're just going to

         11  allow Council Member Stewart to vote. I'm sorry.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: No

         13  problem.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Resolution 88. Council

         15  Member Stewart.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I vote aye.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         18                 Go ahead.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: I'll

         20  start all over. First off, my name is Edgar Butts. I

         21  am Assistant Commissioner with Veterinary and Pest

         22  Control Services at the Department of Health and

         23  Mental Hygiene. I have with me Mr. Ed Boyce, who is

         24  Assistant Director for Veterinary Public Health

         25  Services, and we will -- I will be giving you
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          2  testimony today, Mr. Boyce will be assisting me in

          3  trying to answer some of your questions, or all of

          4  your questions.

          5                 Good afternoon, Madam Chairperson,

          6  and members of the New York City Council Committee

          7  on Health.

          8                 Thank you for inviting the Department

          9  of Health to testify on Intro. 498 regarding 40

         10  kennels businesses or establishments, and Intro.

         11  465, regarding the protection of domestic animals

         12  from injuries inflicted by dangerous dogs. The

         13  mission of the Department of Health, Office of

         14  Veterinary Public Health Services, and I will refer

         15  to this as BPHS throughout the testimony, if you

         16  don't mind, is to promote and protect the health of

         17  New York City residents and visitors by ensuring

         18  they're an environment free from animal-borne

         19  diseases, hazards and nuisances by controlling and

         20  regulating animals.

         21                 VPHS's goals are to prevent the

         22  transmission of zoonotic diseases from animals to

         23  people, and to reduce animal nuisances. To

         24  accomplish these goals, the Program employes the

         25  following strategies:
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          2                 For Education and Community Outreach,

          3  VPHS provides printed materials, mailings and public

          4  seminars in collaboration with the Department of

          5  Health Office of Communications and other City

          6  agencies.

          7                 I'd like to mention our work with the

          8  Mayor's Alliance for New York City's Animals, and

          9  the Dog Licensing Task Force, which bring together

         10  public and non-profit concerns, groups and agencies.

         11                 For monitoring surveillance and

         12  tracking, PHS collects data on animal bites, rabies

         13  vaccination and animal sheltering statistics and

         14  other meaningful occurrences to identify trends that

         15  support animal control.

         16                 VPHS also responds to complaints

         17  regarding animal nuisances. VPHS receives

         18  approximately 5,600 animal bite reports annually,

         19  approximately 4,000 of which are inflicted by dogs.

         20                 Animals suspected of having rabies

         21  were ordered seized and tested. VPHS investigates

         22  all instances of zoonotic diseases transmitted to

         23  humans through reports from veterinarians and

         24  providers of health care to people for such

         25  diseases, including those which might be implicated
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          2  in bioterror attacks.

          3                 For enforcement, VPHS inspects

          4  facilities, issues violations, schedules hearings,

          5  issues commissioners' orders to control and/or

          6  surrender animals which pose a danger to humans, and

          7  enforces City mandates and codes regulating the use

          8  of working animals.

          9                 For regulation, VPHS issues dog

         10  licenses and permits, licenses and training

         11  certificates to operators of animal-related

         12  facilities and activities.

         13                 It also provides for animal care,

         14  shelter and control in the City through a contract

         15  with animal care and control of New York City.

         16                 VPHS also evaluates applications for

         17  wild animal exhibits, and other uses such as

         18  theatrical appearances in movies, television

         19  commercials and for educational purposes.

         20                 Intro. 498, the kennel bill, seeks to

         21  amend the Administrative Code of the City of New

         22  York by adding a new subsection to Title 17 that

         23  would require operators of animal boarding

         24  establishments to obtain proof of vaccinations for

         25  various canine infectious diseases before admitting
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          2  a dog, maintain records for each dog, including

          3  vaccination records, and impose a fine of $250 for

          4  failure to comply.

          5                 This proposal would also require an

          6  annual inspection of such records by the Department

          7  of Health.

          8                 While the Department supports the

          9  intent of the legislation, I would like to point out

         10  that the New York City Health Code, currently

         11  includes a provision establishing similar protection

         12  to these envisioned in this bill.

         13                 Specifically Section 161.15D states

         14  that a holder of a permit to keep small animals for

         15  sale, boarding, grooming or training, shall not sell

         16  or hold for sale boarding, grooming or training a

         17  dog or a cat which is affected with or which has

         18  been exposed to disease which is communicable among

         19  such animals, and shall not keep such animals unless

         20  under the care of a licensed veterinarian.

         21                 To assist permit holders in complying

         22  with this provision, an operator must complete the

         23  animal care and handling course offered through the

         24  Department of Health Health Academy, in order to

         25  receive and maintain their permit.
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          2                 Course content is focused on

          3  pertinent City regulation, and includes careful

          4  review of Section 161.115, as well as current

          5  veterinary recommendations for immunizations.

          6                 Additionally, boarding facilities are

          7  regularly inspected by Department of Health and

          8  Mental Hygiene public health sanitarians for

          9  complying with the Health Code requirements.

         10                 Public health sanitarians may issue

         11  notices of violations of the Health Code which bear

         12  a fine between $200 and $2,000. It is important to

         13  note that we get few, if any, complaints about

         14  illnesses acquired in New York City Boarding

         15  facilities, and we believe that most operators

         16  understand that it's a matter of good business

         17  practice, it is in the best interest of the boarding

         18  facilities to require proof of vaccinations before

         19  agreeing to board a dog.

         20                 Intro. 465, Intro. 465 is aimed at

         21  protecting peaceful and lawfully kept pets from harm

         22  by dangerous dogs. Again, the Department of Health

         23  shares your concern about this very sensitive and

         24  difficult issue.

         25                 While the primary mission of the
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          2  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene is to

          3  protect public health, we believe dog-on-dog

          4  violence is of concern.

          5                 Unfortunately, the difficulty in

          6  identifying truly dangerous animals based on vague

          7  reports that often accompany, not always but often

          8  accompany animal conflicts ranging from commonplace

          9  canine disputes to more serious vicious attacks is

         10  exacerbated by a patchwork of laws and regulations

         11  applying to dangerous dogs which sometimes are

         12  problematic to enforce.

         13                 New York City's Health Code also

         14  regulates many aspects of animal control aimed at

         15  protecting human health, ranging from the regulation

         16  of permitting of animal shelters in kennels to bans

         17  on possession of dangerous wild animals supervisions

         18  addressing the control of rabies and other diseases

         19  of animals communicable to people.

         20                 Section 161.07 of the code provides

         21  for control of vicious or dangerous animals that

         22  menace, threaten, attack or bite a person.

         23                 The Health Code provides that the

         24  Commissioner may order a dog reported to be

         25  dangerous to be seized and brought in for
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          2  examination.

          3                 If upon examination and reviewing all

          4  circumstances surrounding incident, including the

          5  dog's history of bites, the Commissioner finds the

          6  animal to be vicious or dangerous, the Commissioner

          7  may order various control measures, including that

          8  the animal be surrendered for the purpose of humane

          9  destruction or permanently removed from the City.

         10                 The Department will commence a

         11  proceeding or a hearing before OATH if there is

         12  reason to believe that no lesser sanction will

         13  adequately safeguard the health or safety of persons

         14  exposed to the animal.

         15                 Lesser sanctions imposed include

         16  requirements that an animal be muzzled whenever the

         17  animal is in a public place, spaying or neutering or

         18  behavioral training for the animal and the owner.

         19  The Health Code requires health care providers to

         20  report all incidences of animal bites to humans and

         21  such reports are prima facie evidence that an animal

         22  is vicious or dangerous and subject to the remedies

         23  in the Health Code.

         24                 In the Legislation Findings section

         25  of Intro. 465, the Council states that Section 121
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          2  of the New York State Agriculture and Markets Law,

          3  which provides for control of dangerous dogs in New

          4  York State, does not protect animals from dangerous

          5  dogs.

          6                 However, a recent amendment to

          7  Section 108 of the Agriculture and Markets Law

          8  effective December the 15th, 2004, redefines a

          9  dangerous dog as one which also attacks companion

         10  animals, which are defined in Section 350 of the

         11  Agriculture and Markets Law that any dog or cat and

         12  any other domesticated animal normally maintained in

         13  or near a household of an owner or a person who

         14  cares for such other domesticated animals.

         15                 Therefore, the amendment to the State

         16  Law expands the definition of a dangerous dog to

         17  include a dog that attacks a companion animal or

         18  pet.

         19                 The State Law further provides that

         20  upon finding that a dog is dangerous, a judge or a

         21  justice may order a variety of sanctions, including

         22  humane euthanasia, or permanent confinement of a dog

         23  that caused unjustified physical injury or death to

         24  a companion animal.

         25                 The State Agriculture and Markets Law
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          2  also allows for local regulations to address

          3  dangerous dogs so long as they are more stringent

          4  than State law.

          5                 The City's Health Code provisions are

          6  clearly more protective of human health, and we

          7  believe that where there is a clear threat to public

          8  health in the course of a vicious dog attack, the

          9  code authorizes the Department to take action.

         10                 However, the authority may not be

         11  broad enough to cover many incidences of dog-on-dog

         12  violence. It should also be noted that the City's

         13  current dangerous dog law already authorizes the

         14  Department of Health to commence actions to where

         15  dogs are accused of attacking domestic animals.

         16                 However, the burden of proof is

         17  onerous in that the Department must prove that there

         18  was no provocation of the biting dog by the domestic

         19  animal that was bitten. And it's a serious barrier

         20  to enforcement.

         21                 The proposed bill requires the same

         22  proof that there was no provocation. No provocation

         23  is very difficult, in fact almost impossible to

         24  demonstrate in most cases.

         25                 We estimate that if all dog-on-dog
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          2  complaints were considered, that the number could be

          3  several thousand or more annually. Given the City's

          4  serious public health needs, it would not be

          5  possible to devote significant resources required to

          6  investigate, provide for hearings and fact finding

          7  and perform all duties necessary to address each

          8  incident.

          9                 However, we agree there needs to be

         10  greater clarity in the way dangerous dogs are

         11  regulated, including with regard to dog-on-dog

         12  violence, and we would welcome the opportunity to

         13  sit down with the Council to discuss the most

         14  efficient, workable system for New York City.

         15                 In closing, I would like to note that

         16  reports of dogs biting humans have gone down

         17  markedly in recent years from approximately 6,000 in

         18  1999 to 4,000 in 2004, in part due to increases in

         19  spaying and neutering of animals.

         20                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         21  testify on behalf of the Department of Health on

         22  this very important matter. I'm happy to answer any

         23  questions that the Council may have.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. We've
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          2  been joined by the sponsor of the dog-on-dog

          3  violence bill, Council Member Eva Moskowitz.

          4                 I'm going to ask a couple of

          5  questions about the kennel bill and then turn it

          6  over for Council Member Moskowitz for questions on

          7  the other bill and then obviously the other members

          8  of the Committee.

          9                 So, as it relates to 498, it sounds

         10  to me like what we presently have is a bit of an

         11  honor system. The law says that kennels cannot take

         12  dogs, for lack of a short-handed -- but we don't

         13  ever check, right? And there's no system in place

         14  for even the kennel proprietors to check to see

         15  whether the owner is in fact telling the truth.

         16  We're taking people's word for it.

         17                 It is my understanding that we

         18  inspect kennels and there are other places that

         19  handle grooming centers, that we inspect these

         20  facilities, the ones that are regulated on an

         21  annualized basis.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right. But when

         23  the dogs come in, do we presently, under what you

         24  pointed out in Section 161.15D, do the kennel owners

         25  get the paperwork that we're talking about from the
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          2  pet owners before they take the pets in?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: I'm

          4  going to refer that to Mr. Boyce, because he has

          5  hands-on experience in dealing with this.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay. Just

          7  identify yourself for the record.

          8                 MR. BOYCE: Edward Boyce, Assistant

          9  Director of Veterinary Public Health Services,

         10  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.

         11                 There's presently no requirement for

         12  other vaccinations. The only required vaccination in

         13  the Health Code is rabies.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         15                 So, we don't actually even have on an

         16  honor system -- what we have now, or require now,

         17  which I'll categorize it that there's no proof

         18  required of, isn't even exactly the same as what the

         19  bill calls for?

         20                 MR. BOYCE: That is correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay. So, that's

         22  an important distinction. The testimony kind of

         23  makes it sound like it's identical. It's not. The

         24  bill has I think a higher and a more appropriate

         25  public health standard for shots, et cetera, et
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          2  cetera, that have to occur. So that's one point.

          3                 And then two, presently, although you

          4  do inspect the kennels, there is no system by which

          5  it's required that the owners provide paperwork or

          6  veterinary documentation to the proprietors before

          7  the proprietors accept the animal?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: It is

          9  my understanding that most reputable, or all

         10  reputable kennels do so, but it's not a requirement.

         11                 And I would hope, like I said in my

         12  experience, most people are of like mind, but what

         13  we want to do in the law is make sure we set a

         14  standard that is enforceable so that we're not

         15  basing the success and the health, public health

         16  quality of establishments on a proprietors reputable

         17  nature, because fortunately that isn't going to be

         18  the case for everybody.

         19                 Okay, so that said, is it fair to say

         20  that the Administration is supportive of this bill

         21  since it does go further beyond the honor system,

         22  and to a larger number of shots and health

         23  protections and what is presently in the law, is it

         24  fair to say the Administration is supportive of this

         25  piece of legislation?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: I think

          3  it would be better to say we don't oppose it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: So when the bill

          5  gets passed by the Council, is the Mayor going to

          6  sign it?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: The way

          8  that the bill is laid out, there will be some things

          9  that would need to be discussed, but if that happens

         10  then it would be supported.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: What are the

         12  nature of the things that need to be discussed? Just

         13  so we know so we can prepare?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Can I

         15  get back to you on that?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Yes. Though,

         17  typically --

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: I

         19  apologize.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure.

         21                 Typically, just so we're all clear,

         22  it's most helpful if the things that need to be

         23  changed are in the testimony that's delivered about

         24  the bill.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Yes,
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          2  Ma'am.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Do you know what I

          4  mean?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: So for the future

          7  --

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Because now we're

         10  going to have to have this meeting, and then we're

         11  going to have to have another meeting before we have

         12  the meeting to talk about the problems. If we were

         13  told here, we could have just had one meeting.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: I

         15  apologize. I'm relatively new in this job, and I,

         16  you know, I wish I had all the answers.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: And I

         19  wish I could say this, this and this. And I

         20  apologize and it won't happen again.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay. So, if we

         22  could try to get those back to the Counsel to the

         23  Committee as soon as possible, because we could then

         24  move forward with the follow-up meeting.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Now, the other

          3  thing, just important difference between the present

          4  system and the bill that I just want to make sure

          5  we're all clear on is, our bill would require a

          6  record keeping, so that there would actually be

          7  proof. That isn't the present, correct?

          8                 MR. BOYCE: There is no requirement

          9  for record keeping.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: So that would be

         11  additional built-in protection, so-to-speak. Okay.

         12                 Great. Now I'm going to turn it over

         13  to Council Member Moskowitz for the other bill, and

         14  then to the Committee members, and then we might,

         15  which is confusing so I apologize, jump back and

         16  forth between bills.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: No, no.

         18  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And if you could,

         20  as I said, follow-up with the Counsel to the

         21  Committee as soon as possible, because we're anxious

         22  to move forward.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: You

         24  will get those. Thank you. And I apologize.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That's okay.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you,

          3  Chair Quinn, for holding this hearing and all the

          4  work that you and the Counsel to the Committee has

          5  done on this bill.

          6                 The impetus for this bill, I think

          7  you know, was death of a chowowa in my district that

          8  received a lot of attention, and when even before

          9  that happened there was even an attempt by Committee

         10  members to go to the police because this particular

         11  dog that bit the smaller dog had a history of

         12  aggression towards other dogs, and the police told

         13  various community members that they couldn't do

         14  anything about it because there was nothing under

         15  the law. And that's when I drafted the bill.

         16                 Subsequently the State, as you know,

         17  has done its own version.

         18                 My first question is, how much

         19  dog-on-dog violence is there, and is that something

         20  that we have any numbers about how common it is. I

         21  notice that you, you know, obviously have very fixed

         22  statistics about dog-on-human violence, and you

         23  noted that it dropped from 6,000 to 4,000. I think

         24  that was over a --

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: That's
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          2  correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:-- Two-year,

          4  or three-year period.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Since

          6  '99.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Since '99,

          8  okay.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Yes,

         10  Ma'am.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: And what

         12  about dog-on-dog violence?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: It's

         14  estimated that all dog-on-dog violence was reported.

         15  It would be probably several thousand, maybe more.

         16  We don't have an exact number on that. There is a

         17  magnitude of dog-on-dog violence. You know, two dogs

         18  fighting because one has invaded another one's

         19  territory is one thing. A dog attacking, a pit bull

         20  attacking a Chowowa is certainly another. And it's,

         21  you know, a sensitive thing, and we appreciate that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: So several

         23  thousand you think and just --

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: We

         25  don't have numbers on it, but --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: But that

          3  would be your guesstimate, I understand. I

          4  understand that.

          5                 And in your experience is there

          6  overlap or are these distinct? In other words, are

          7  dogs that bite another dog the same aggressive dogs

          8  that may be biting people?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: I spoke

         10  with some people in the animal community about this,

         11  and their comment, some of the people commented that

         12  dogs are dogs, and dogs are going to get into fights

         13  with themselves. You know, I think to differentiate

         14  between a dog on a leash that you're out walking and

         15  two dogs that are, you know, one invades another

         16  one's territory.

         17                 There are some situations where an

         18  owner gets bitten trying to pull this dog away from

         19  a dog that's attacking. I mean that has occurred. To

         20  answer if they're distinctive, we have no numbers on

         21  that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Okay.

         23                 Is there anything in State law that

         24  prevents the City from addressing this issue?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Not to
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          2  my knowledge, but the City, I mean the State law, as

          3  I talked about in my testimony, State law requires

          4  you to prove that the dog was not -- the biting dog

          5  was not provoked, and if you look at the State law,

          6  there is also a whole section on exclusions.

          7                 I will add I'm not an attorney, so

          8  some of this stuff I'm going to have to be careful

          9  on how or what I'm saying.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Neither am

         11  I. We have that in common. But let me just read

         12  Section 1075 briefly, because it specifically states

         13  that "nothing contained in this article shall

         14  prevent a municipality from adopting its own program

         15  for the control of dangerous dogs. And I won't go on

         16  at length. But the State specifically put in its

         17  legislation that there was nothing that meant that

         18  the City couldn't ask.

         19                 Let me ask one final question, and I

         20  know many other people on the Committee have

         21  questions.

         22                 Part of the existing administrative

         23  code, as I understand it, sets up a dangerous dog

         24  advisory board. Are you familiar with that?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Yes,
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          2  Ma'am. I'm aware of that part of --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Okay.

          4                 How many times has it met in the last

          5  year?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: There

          7  is no committee.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Okay. Even

          9  though it's mandated?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: That's

         11  my understanding.

         12                 I'm just saying there is no

         13  committee.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Okay. Why?

         15  Did you not see this --

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: The

         17  goal, we talked about it, the goal was to try to

         18  have the licensing Committee, the licensing

         19  committee deal with those matters, but that is to be

         20  done.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Okay. So,

         22  are you committing to complying with the

         23  Administrative Code that says the City must get this

         24  up and running?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: What

                                                            32

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  I'm saying, I'm sort of caught between a rock and a

          3  hard place, because I can't really answer that

          4  question.

          5                 What I could do is I could go back to

          6  my management and find out more. But what the goal

          7  was was to have the licensing, you know the dog

          8  licensing committee, deal with that requirement.

          9                 The members of this Committee have

         10  never been appointed.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I just want to

         12  jump in.

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I have an

         15  important point from an institutional perspective.

         16  The Council, the Speaker of the Council is to

         17  appoint three people to that committee. In

         18  preparation for this hearing we checked our Rules

         19  Privileges and Elections Committee and the staff who

         20  process and do the investigations as we appoint

         21  people to the Committee. Apparently we have over the

         22  course of the past few years tried to appoint people

         23  to that and are unable to do that because there is

         24  no entity to put our appointments onto.

         25                 So, just for the record, I want to
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          2  say we, the Council has explored this in an attempt

          3  to make our legal, to meet our legal requirement,

          4  and that is why we've not been able to do it.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Let me

          6  clarify what I just said, because we will comply

          7  with the law and we're looking into it.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Okay, given

          9  that we have, by your records alone, 4,000 people

         10  being attacked, it just seems we have a dangerous

         11  dog problem. It's less than it was and that's a good

         12  thing, but there is still a problem and there's a

         13  need for people who are concerned about this to

         14  solve this problem in addition to the dog-on-dog

         15  violence. I would appreciate it if the

         16  Administration could allow the Council to make its

         17  appointments and to form this Committee, which is

         18  not an option, it's in the law.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Thank

         21  you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I just want to

         23  follow-up with two things before I call on Council

         24  Member Sears and then Oddo.

         25                 I think the conversation that just
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          2  occurred about the Committee is, obviously,

          3  problematic, but somehow for me very instructive to

          4  go back to the first bill.

          5                 You know, the first bill, on the

          6  kennel bill we talked largely, I've characterized

          7  what we have as an honor system, but we're not even

          8  meeting some of the legal requirements that are set

          9  around different animal controlled issues in this

         10  City. So I think you could understand based on that

         11  conversation why it is very important to the Council

         12  that we don't have an honor system as it relates to

         13  kennels, that we actually have a legal standards

         14  with records that are kept so people have, one, a

         15  sense of confidence when they're going to

         16  facilities, but, two, we have a very well documented

         17  set of records for people to investigate and check

         18  the quality and the standards of the facilities

         19  we're talking about.

         20                 Do you have any idea of how many

         21  animals have become ill, died, from going to

         22  facilities where they came in contact with other

         23  animals who did not have the appropriate

         24  vaccinations, or the other animals were in such a

         25  state that they shouldn't have been in a kennel
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          2  environment?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: I'll

          4  defer that to Mr. Boyce.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, sure.

          6                 MR. BOYCE: We receive very few

          7  complaints about boarding kennels. It would also be

          8  very --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Can I interrupt

         10  you for one second? I'm sorry.

         11                 When you do the inspections, are

         12  those yearly?

         13                 MR. BOYCE: We have two inspections.

         14  One is a cycle inspection where all animals

         15  facilities are visited by a public health sanitarian

         16  at least once a year.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         18                 MR. BOYCE: We also have

         19  complaint-driven. And as I said, we receive very few

         20  complaints. The possibility being that there is

         21  difficulty in proving that an infectious disease was

         22  contacted at this place, rather than a next door dog

         23  or next door cat.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: When you do your

         25  yearly inspections, set aside the complaint-driven
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          2  ones for a second, when you do the yearly ones, do

          3  you ask the proprietors if any of the dogs that are

          4  under their care became sick, died, what the nature

          5  of that was, how it was contracted? Do you ask

          6  questions that might lead us to have greater

          7  information about what the situation is?

          8                 MR. BOYCE: There is a self-inspection

          9  report that they have to maintain and part of that

         10  questioning is related to that.

         11                 But also, it's a visual inspection,

         12  if a sanitarian was to go in to see a dog that was

         13  ill, then we would take --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Are they surprise

         15  inspections, or do they know when you're coming?

         16                 MR. BOYCE: Only the Bureau sets them

         17  up so they are surprise inspections.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Then, not specific

         19  to this, I'm not a fan in general, not specific to

         20  the kennel provisions, self-certification, because I

         21  think for obvious reasons, nothing disparaging

         22  kennel proprietors, I would say this relates to

         23  housing and a whole bunch of other areas, I don't

         24  think self-certification is a particularly useful or

         25  useful standard in government, because it's in the
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          2  interest of the people who are filling out the

          3  forms, they need to get the approval and they need

          4  to pass the inspection, whatever the government

          5  interaction is, and I've always across the board

          6  been very skeptical of that, as a useful enforcement

          7  tool. Just so you know that.

          8                 MR. BOYCE: Our self-inspection report

          9  is basically what the sanitarian would be looking at

         10  when he goes in. It's a guide for the proprietor.

         11                 We don't use that for writing or

         12  looking at violations.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Then how do you

         14  get the information about whether or not there was a

         15  dog that contracted an illness they believe from

         16  either a dog that died while in the care of that

         17  facility? Because you couldn't see that when you

         18  were there.

         19                 MR. BOYCE: Through complaints. We

         20  would check back.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And how do people

         22  know how to complain?

         23                 MR. BOYCE: Now it's through 3-1-1.

         24  Before that it was through the Department of Health

         25  Central Complaint Unit.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Why would I know,

          3  if I was an average New Yorker, to call 3-1-1 for

          4  something like this?

          5                 MR. BOYCE: Because all animal

          6  facilities are permitted by the Department of

          7  Health.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I don't think

          9  people would think that. I don't think people would

         10  think X happened, I'm going to call 3-1-1. I don't

         11  think that's in the average New Yorker's mindset of

         12  what 3-1-1 is about.

         13                 So my point being really that I don't

         14  think the records we have are probably an accurate

         15  representation. I hope they are, but an accurate

         16  representation of what the problem may or may not

         17  be.

         18                 MR. BOYCE: Also, the veterinarian

         19  would probably go into depth with the animals that

         20  the person is taking to be treated. They might ask

         21  if the animal was boarded or things of that nature.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And has the

         23  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene communicated

         24  in writing or whatever to veterinarians that when

         25  they come in contact with a pet owner whose animal
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          2  has become sick or died in a kennel facility, do

          3  they know that they're supposed to instruct pet

          4  owners to call 3-1-1?

          5                 MR. BOYCE: We meet regularly with New

          6  York City Veterinarian Medical Association and they

          7  are aware of 3-1-1 and our central complaints.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And they then send

          9  a letter to their members? Or how does it get to the

         10  average vet that they should tell the pet owner

         11  that?

         12                 MR. BOYCE: That there's a New York

         13  City Veterinary Medical Association that puts out a

         14  newsletter, which we have used quite often.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: We're actually

         16  going to hear from them in a little bit.

         17                 Council Member Sears.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

         19  Madam Chair, and good afternoon.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Good

         21  afternoon.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Good to see you

         23  again, Dr. Butts.

         24                 In your testimony you talked about

         25  the Agricultural and Markets Law and how it was
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          2  expanded, and you state that it was clearly for the

          3  protection of human health and that it was expanded

          4  to deal with dog-on-dog vicious acts, but you state

          5  that this authority may not be broad enough to cover

          6  many incidents of dog-on-dog violence.

          7                 Could you tell me what incidents you

          8  think may not be covered by this that should be

          9  included in the legislation that is being considered

         10  by the Committee so it would have what doesn't exist

         11  at the moment?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: I hate

         13  giving you an answer that I don't know the answer

         14  to.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That's okay.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Rather

         17  than shoot from the hip, I can't give you a specific

         18  --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: It's all right.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: I

         21  apologize. I'd rather not tell you something that's

         22  not true.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay.

         24                 Do you think you could get back,

         25  because it seems like, I'll give you an instance,
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          2  for instance.

          3                 My niece and her dog were attacked by

          4  a Pitbull and the dog took about half of the dog's

          5  stomach out. It was really a vicious attack. And her

          6  hand was not in such great shape either.

          7                 But I want to know what kind of an

          8  act that would be considered, and what would be the

          9  consequences of such an act to the owners of that

         10  dog?

         11                 I think what we're dealing with here,

         12  and from what I can understand is what are

         13  considered really very vicious acts on dog, on dog

         14  and on cat and what determines the --

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: You

         16  said cats also?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well, I think I

         18  saw something here that said dogs or cats.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Yes,

         20  Ma'am.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So, as a result

         22  I'm just encompassing what is existing already. And

         23  I think for clarification, in order to expand and

         24  work with the Administration on this, I think there

         25  needs to be some clarification as to exactly what
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          2  you determine is a very vicious act --

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Yes,

          4  Ma'am.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: -- And what the

          6  consequences are.

          7                 It's one thing to determine that it's

          8  a vicious act, but I think what's more important

          9  here are what are the consequences of that. If it is

         10  mandated by law, I think that people who own their

         11  pets and are affected by this violence, they need to

         12  know what they have and how the law protects them.

         13                 I think somehow I don't get the

         14  feeling that that's exactly what we're dealing with,

         15  and I think that's being looked for.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Yes,

         17  Ma'am.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Unless I

         19  totally misunderstand this, but I think that's

         20  what's missing. And I think that that would help a

         21  lot so that there would be a working together, the

         22  Administration and the Committee Chair, to do that.

         23  That would be very helpful.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Yes,

         25  Ma'am. And we would like to sit down with the
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          2  Council to see if we can work out a bill that's good

          3  for everybody, or that's workable.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay, that

          5  would be fine. And just one other thing, when a

          6  vicious act on a dog happens and they go to the

          7  veterinarian, is that veterinarian obligated to

          8  report this anywhere? How does it become a

          9  statistic? Or it doesn't become a statistic?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: I just

         11  asked Mr. Boyce and he said, no, it's not required

         12  to be reported.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay. Maybe

         14  that's something we would look at? Because I think

         15  the consequences of these vicious acts should, we

         16  should develop a statistic, and particularly if it

         17  happens in particular regions that we may be looking

         18  at just these kind of acts and the dogs or the

         19  animals that are in that.

         20                 So, I would think, Madam Chair, that

         21  that's something the Committee would want to look at

         22  in working in this bill.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Yes,

         24  Ma'am. I appreciate your comments.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Thank

          4  you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

          6  Oddo.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Madam

          8  Chair.

          9                 I have a sort of a personal stake in

         10  this discussion because I'm the owner of a little

         11  pug who sometimes thinks he's a Pitbull, and while I

         12  have a little bit of a junkyard dog temperament

         13  myself, it's frankly very daunting when I'm walking

         14  a 23 pound chubby pug and there's somebody's dog off

         15  on a leash and kind of eyeing either me or Olly as a

         16  big porkchop.

         17                 So, I understand the sentiment behind

         18  the two pieces of legislation. Let me just ask you a

         19  couple of questions, Dr. Butts.

         20                 The number that you referred to in

         21  your testimony and that Council Member Moskowitz

         22  talked about, the decrease in the number of

         23  incidents, and it says that you attribute it to the

         24  spaying and neutering of animals; is that as simple

         25  as the fact that the spaying and neutering of
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          2  animals has decreased the overall dog population

          3  which directly has decreased, led to the decrease in

          4  bites? Does spaying and neutering of dogs take the

          5  fight out of them?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Yes,

          7  all bites have to be reported, and it's my

          8  understanding the population is not decreased.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: So the spaying

         10  and neutering --

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: It

         12  changes the temperament.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: -- Takes the

         14  fight out of them?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: It's in

         16  part spaying and neutering.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: That's

         19  one of the reasons that we want --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: That was out of

         21  curiosity. The more substantive question is, I think

         22  it would be helpful, and obviously I'm sure you

         23  don't have them here, but I think as we continue

         24  this dialogue, I think it would be helpful for us to

         25  know, get some numbers from the agency.
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          2                 When you say that the Department has

          3  the ability to impose these type of sanctions, such

          4  as spaying and neutering or behavioral training for

          5  the animal of the owner, actually muzzling an

          6  animal, I would love to know how often that's taken

          7  place?

          8                 And you referred to the State law

          9  allows us to actually permanently confine a dog; I

         10  would like to know the numbers. Because if we're not

         11  doing this, I mean there is no sense in even putting

         12  a new law on the books.

         13                 Are there some numbers that you could

         14  share with us to indicate how often these provisions

         15  are actually invoked?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:

         17  Anecdotally, I started work for the Department on

         18  June 7th, 2004, and I would say that muzzle orders,

         19  I probably signed a maximum of ten. The confining to

         20  the City, none. Or excuse me, confining, just a

         21  complete confinement, I signed none.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: But you actually

         23  signed ten muzzle?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: I would

         25  say no more than ten. I would have to go back and
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          2  look.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Interestingly

          4  enough, the Speaker actually signed 15 during that

          5  period of time, but those are for Council members.

          6                 That's interesting to me that you

          7  actually have signed ten. So, the ten dogs are

          8  proven --

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: And I

         10  will say that the muzzle, we did put a muzzle order

         11  on the dogs that attacked the Chowawa, that did the

         12  vicious attack over on the East Side with the

         13  Chowawa.  That could have been my first one.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: You signed that

         15  document after folks within the agency have made

         16  that recommendation to you?

         17                 You can't have a jury of his peers,

         18  so who is calling the shots as to --

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Mr.

         20  Boyce's group determines whether a muzzle order, or

         21  whatever other kind of mitigation is needed. They

         22  bring it to me to sign and we talk about it and we

         23  signed it.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Do we have any

         25  numbers as to how many dogs are declared dangerous
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          2  each year? If not, can you get us --

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: I don't

          4  have that number, but I will try to get it.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay, great.

          6  Thank you, Dr. Butts.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Thank

          8  you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         10  Stewart.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         12  Madam Chair.

         13                 Dr. Butts, do we have any status to

         14  differentiate dog on human, or dogs on dogs, or dogs

         15  on other animals, the vicious attacks? Do we have

         16  any stats to show that?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: We have

         18  stats to show how many times humans were bitten

         19  because those are required to be reported. They're

         20  either reported by the police, or they're reported

         21  by the -- we get a little pink card that tells

         22  whether there has been a bite.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Do we have

         24  any laws in the books to have mandatory tags on

         25  dogs? Tags, like dogs who have a tag? I know years
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          2  ago --

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Are you

          4  speaking of licenses?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Well, yes,

          6  licenses, but it must have a tag?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: It's my

          8  understanding that the license is a tag. Once you

          9  license your dog --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: You get

         12  a tag. And it's got a number, and it's a very big

         13  help. And what we are in the process of going on

         14  line with licensing, something that we're, hopefully

         15  we're going to be doing it some time this year. We

         16  want to work with every group we can to increase

         17  licensing.

         18                 There's about 103,000 dogs, 102,000

         19  dogs licensed in the City right now.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So, it's a

         21  violation to have a dog without a tag.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: In the

         23  public.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: In the

         25  public.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Yes,

          3  sir.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right. My

          5  other question has to do with the amount of violence

          6  in vicious attacks that we have been seeing in

          7  recent years. Why is it that it's so difficult for

          8  us to say, well, listen, cars don't really have the

          9  ability to do anything by itself, and we have

         10  insurance, liability insurance on cars in New York

         11  State, New York City, and it's mandatory. Why is it

         12  that we can't have liability insurance for dogs, an

         13  animal that can at least sometimes out of no

         14  provocation would attack someone or attack another

         15  dog or attack another animal, why is it that we

         16  can't have liability insurance? Why is it such a

         17  problem?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: I may

         19  wish I hadn't said this comment, but we have a

         20  challenge --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: The Office of

         22  Legislative Affairs just went --

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: We're

         24  having a challenge getting dogs licensed, and

         25  getting -- we've got about, and we're really trying
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          2  and we're going to continue to try, but it's hard to

          3  get people to license their dogs, and there's about

          4  20 percent of the dogs, we're estimating about 20

          5  percent of the dogs. I don't know how you're going

          6  to get people to do liability insurance. How would

          7  you enforce it? And what if you've got a Cocker

          8  Spaniel, or just a couch dog, that is basically as

          9  docile as they come, why should you have to have

         10  liability insurance on the dog?

         11                 You know, there's a huge number of

         12  dogs in the building I live in --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Why should I

         14  be subjected to a bite and I can't go after anyone?

         15  I have to take them to court to really deal with it,

         16  why should I be subjected to that?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: I can't

         18  answer your question, but all I'm saying is that

         19  making people to have liability insurance I think

         20  would be even a bigger challenge than having them

         21  license their dog.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes, but if

         23  we really want to do it, we can do it, because we're

         24  making people get liability insurance for a car. A

         25  car doesn't move by itself, but a dog can move by
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          2  itself. A dog can attack someone without any

          3  provocation. A car wouldn't -- it wouldn't happen

          4  with a car unless somebody is driving it. And we

          5  find a way to get liability insurance for cars.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: All I

          7  can say is that, let me talk to our people, and talk

          8  to the legislative people and see what the

          9  possibilities are.

         10                 I can't answer that question. All I

         11  can say is, it just seems like it's a challenge, and

         12  it seems like you're also penalizing 98 percent of

         13  the dogs in New York City for a few vicious dogs.

         14  And you're also penalizing their owners. Not you,

         15  but the liability insurance.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: No. Based on

         17  the insurance company. If it's a poodle, then the

         18  insurance will be minimal. Whereas, the -- the cost

         19  of the insurance would be minimal. But if it's a

         20  Pitbull, the cost of the insurance would be much

         21  more.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: You

         23  know, I'm not in a position to -- I'm just saying it

         24  would be a challenge to get that done. Some

         25  homeowners insurance I understand does carry
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          2  liability insurance on dogs.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes, see, I'm

          4  concerned because I can see the family, the child

          5  being bitten by a dog and destroyed, like the one

          6  that happened in the Bronx some time ago, and the

          7  owner of the dog had no insurance or anything like

          8  that and there is no way you can get anything from

          9  that person who owned the dog.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So that's

         12  what I'm looking at. And it continues to happen like

         13  that. These things, incidents continues to happen,

         14  and we turn a blind eye that we have -- if we want

         15  to keep a pet that is vicious, that is really in the

         16  position where he can attack or hurt someone, we

         17  should be able to, you know, create an environment

         18  that the person when they're attacked, they can go

         19  at them. But right now I don't see any way in which

         20  anybody could recoup anything, whether it's the time

         21  from work or whether it's the time for medical care

         22  or anything.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: I

         24  appreciate what you're saying.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: All
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          2  right.

          3                 I think I asked you about the tags.

          4  Are all dogs required to get injections and all

          5  those things from rabies and all those things, are

          6  they required to do that and if they don't, if you

          7  meet the dog at maybe a year old and it never had

          8  any of those things, is the person being cited for a

          9  violation?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: Yes. I

         11  will let Mr. Boyce answer that.

         12                 MR. BOYCE: Every dog and cat in the

         13  City over three months of age must be vaccinated

         14  against rabies. The fine for that $500 to $2,000.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

         16  Thanks. See we can do that, but we're afraid to do

         17  (laughter.) Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 Thank you, all, for your testimony.

         21  As I said before, we're very anxious to follow up.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS: You

         23  will get that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And if we could

         25  have it. If you would have the Office of Legislative
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          2  Affairs get back to our Counsel so we could try to

          3  get moving on that quickly, I would very much

          4  appreciate that.

          5                 We're going to call our next witness

          6  up to testify, Cindy Adams.

          7                 As Ms. Adams is making her way up, I

          8  again want to thank her on behalf of myself and

          9  Speaker Miller, for coming forward and sharing with

         10  us your own personal loss, and telling us about that

         11  so we could move forward with this legislation,

         12  which I think the testimony of the first panel made

         13  pretty clear is very much necessary.

         14                 So, I'll just ask if you could state

         15  your name before you begin to testify.

         16                 MS. ADAMS: My name is Cindy Adams. I

         17  want to thank the Chair and the Council for allowing

         18  me to speak here. I think it is known to most of us

         19  that it is now a $33 billion a year industry, dogs.

         20  Possibly it's because we're all cocooning more. We

         21  have the Internet, we have the cell phones, we have

         22  faxes, people live alone, some people don't even go

         23  outside to work.

         24                 As a result, dogs have become very

         25  much a part of our lives today.
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          2                 Where I live you see more dogs on the

          3  streets almost than you see anybody else, any other

          4  human kind of life. And, so, dogs are now part of

          5  our family. They are no longer animals, they are no

          6  longer beasts. When my husband of 40 years died, and

          7  I was bereft. A friend sent me in a little four

          8  pound Yorkie named Jazzy. Jazzy became a lifeline

          9  for me, because I had nothing, no family at all. He

         10  was my only family. And we've always taken care of

         11  him on our own. He had a trainer to whom he went in

         12  the City for doggy day care, as the Chairlady said,

         13  every Thursday, and was socialized every Thursday.

         14  She had a place Upstate. I had never been there, and

         15  this one and only weekend of our lives, my

         16  housekeeper who always took him, or I who always

         17  took him were, both of us out of town, and we

         18  thought we'll send him to the trainer who has known

         19  him for three and a half years.

         20                 He went up perfectly healthy,

         21  beautiful, wonderful on Friday. Sunday he came back

         22  dead. He was brought into my arms dead. Ice cold.

         23  Filled with blood. Caked blood.

         24                 Nobody ever explained to me what

         25  happened to this creature which was my entire life.
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          2  My only blood relative at that point. No husband, no

          3  children; that's all I had.

          4                 I asked. I had an autopsy performed,

          5  nobody ever gave me an answer as to what happened to

          6  him. They said, well, we really don't no. There was

          7  no policing. The people even in charge, those people

          8  whom you have had here who are supposedly in charge

          9  of this, don't even actually know that there is

         10  nothing going on there.

         11                 So, I would like to help animals.

         12  Some of us need these creatures in our lives. They

         13  are not protected at all. They go up. There are

         14  animals there, big dogs feasting on little dogs.

         15  There are little dogs who are eating things in the

         16  fields, we don't know where it came from. My little

         17  dog, who until I brought him on that Friday, had

         18  been fed Kosher chickens on porcelain from LeCirque.

         19  When they checked his insides he had e-coli

         20  bacteria. How is it possible this little creature

         21  who was treated better than I have been in my house,

         22  had e-coli in his system? Nobody knows. And it is

         23  for that reason that I have come before the Council.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Well, again, thank

         25  you very much. You know, I think from your
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          2  experience, and also the testimony of the Department

          3  of Health and Mental Hygiene, it's very clear that

          4  there isn't a system. That we're really taking

          5  people's word.

          6                 MS. ADAMS: There is no system. There

          7  is no policing whatsoever. There is not even factual

          8  knowledge of the people who come before you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And you know, the

         10  idea that one visit would be enough, and also that

         11  you would allow people who it's in their best

         12  interest to fill out a form and say everything is

         13  okay, because if everything isn't okay, they are

         14  going to get fined, that just doesn't seem like a

         15  strong enough or the appropriate structure to have,

         16  given what you rightly pointed out, which we really

         17  didn't discuss so far, the large financial stake and

         18  amount of money that is being made off of animal,

         19  dog care, and also given the importance that pets

         20  have in people's lives, we should have a standard.

         21                 You know, I talked about where I take

         22  my dog, unfortunately a dog one weekend died at the

         23  facility, and the gentleman who runs at my facility

         24  called every single person who takes a pet to that

         25  place to tell them.
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          2                 Now everybody should be as good as he

          3  is and conscientious, and it has nothing to do with

          4  his facility, but we cannot make that assumption, we

          5  need to have a set of standards and laws that set a

          6  standard.

          7                 So, thank you, again, for focusing

          8  us.

          9                 MS. ADAMS: I have here, I'm not going

         10  to bring it before you all, a list of letters from

         11  people --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Oh great.

         13                 MS. ADAMS: Including Judge Barry,

         14  Donald Trump's sister, who is a Judge, sent her dog

         15  to a similar kennel and every time he came back he

         16  was sick. I have this list of all these people who

         17  have had the same experience.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You know, the

         19  other thing I want to say, and we'll definitely take

         20  those letters, you know, you talked about your Jazzy

         21  went to a facility Upstate, and although our

         22  jurisdiction is only in the five boroughs, I just

         23  wanted to let you know, one thing we have seen

         24  regularly is that when the Council, particularly on

         25  health matters, passes legislation, that the State
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          2  Legislature then follows suit.

          3                 So, I would hope that what we do here

          4  for the five counties of New York will be an example

          5  for the State Legislature for the rest of the State,

          6  and we would certainly, once we finished the

          7  business before, just want to work with you on

          8  taking this to a State law as well.

          9                 MS. ADAMS: Thank you very much.

         10                 Thank you to the Council for

         11  listening to me.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 I'm going to call up the next panel,

         15  which is Lisa Weisberg. I'm sorry if I'm butchering

         16  your name, Vice President of Government Affairs at

         17  the ASPCA.

         18                 Is Regina Massaro here?

         19                 MS. MASSARO: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay. If you could

         21  come on up. Director of Spay and Neuter Intervention

         22  Project, and Dr. John Sangiorgio, New York City's

         23  Veterinary Association.

         24                 Are Regina and John here? Oh, Regina,

         25  come on up to the witness stand.
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          2                 Is John here? Are you Dr. John? Well,

          3  why don't you two go right ahead. Why don't you go

          4  first, and please just identify yourself for the

          5  record.

          6                 MS. WEISBERG: Sure. My name is Lisa

          7  Weisberg, and I'm Senior Vice President of

          8  Government Affairs and Public Policy at the ASPCA.

          9                 Is the order that we first speak on

         10  four --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Whatever you want.

         12                 MS. WEISBERG: Okay. Since we're on

         13  the subject of 498-A, I'm not going to read my

         14  entire testimony, since some of it is redundant, but

         15  what we do know is that New York City law only

         16  requires boarding facilities to have a permit to do

         17  business. They're supposed to be in compliance with

         18  Article 135 of the Health Code, which is, govern

         19  Sanitation, and the facility owner is supposed to

         20  complete a course in the care and handling of dogs,

         21  cats and other small animals.

         22                 Interestingly, the Health Code does

         23  prohibit the holder of a permit to board dogs or

         24  cats which are affected which are affected with, or

         25  which have been exposed to a disease which is
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          2  communicable to other dogs and cats, but as we know,

          3  we can't always tell whether or not that dog or cat

          4  is affected with or has been exposed to such

          5  disease.

          6                 So, what this bill would require is

          7  very simple. I mean, certainly for those diseases

          8  that we have inoculations for, then they should be

          9  inoculated and certainly we require that at the

         10  ASPCA before any animals are taken in.

         11                 And likewise, we would also urge the

         12  Committee on Health to consider in the future

         13  legislation to require the inoculation of cats that

         14  are being boarded.

         15                 I mean, it's not as important, I mean

         16  it's not as grave an issue as dogs, because cats

         17  tend to stay in their cage, but nevertheless, they

         18  are being exposed to other cats.

         19                 So, certainly we support this

         20  legislation, and we believe that it will minimize in

         21  the future dogs from contracting these contagious --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Can you just, the

         23  counsel stepped away for a second, just restate the

         24  suggestion you had about cat legislation.

         25                 MS. WEISBERG: Sure.
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          2                 Because cats are also, there are

          3  inoculations that are given to cats where it's known

          4  as the FVRCP shot, and it protects cats against

          5  panoleukemia and hepatitis and another virus, and

          6  this is just standard practice so that when cats are

          7  being boarded, we should have the same kind of

          8  requirement, that they be inoculated, as well.

          9                 So, but certainly we support this

         10  legislation.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: We will follow-up

         12  with you on that.

         13                 MS. WEISBERG: Okay, thank you.

         14                 Regarding 465, I just wanted to make

         15  a few comments before I talk about my -- you know,

         16  we support the bill but we think it can be stronger.

         17  Some issues that came up before regarding New York

         18  State's dangerous dog law, that's in Section 121 of

         19  Article 7. Article 7, with the exception of a few

         20  provisions, only applies to New York State outside

         21  New York City. It does not apply to New York City,

         22  and there is that section in Section 107 that

         23  specifically says localities can govern dangerous

         24  dogs, as long as it's stringent, and it's not done

         25  on a breed-specific basis.
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          2                 The second thing I want to say is

          3  that, with all due respect to the Department of

          4  Health, we actually think the New York City

          5  Dangerous Dog Law is really good. The problem is

          6  it's not being enforced and it never really has been

          7  enforced.

          8                 I believe that it already governs

          9  attacks on other dogs. They use the word "domestic

         10  animal," I pointed out that I think there is some

         11  confusion with the definition of domestic animal,

         12  which I could not find a definition of in the

         13  Administrative Code. When you look to the State law

         14  domestic animal is basically defined as various farm

         15  animals.

         16                 New York State does have a law that

         17  defines companion animal or a pet, and I had

         18  suggested that we might want to be consistent with

         19  the State definition.

         20                 Also, I wanted to suggest that for

         21  the excused behavior provision in the New York City

         22  dangerous dog law, it only applies to attacks, dogs

         23  that attack when they're provoked by a person. We

         24  could have a situation where a dog is attacked by

         25  another dog, and then attacks that dog to protect
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          2  itself, or protect its owner or its offspring. So,

          3  we might want to consider amending the excused

          4  behavior definition to also include dogs that are

          5  provoked to attack because they're being attacked by

          6  another dog.

          7                 And lastly, the formation of the

          8  dangerous dog advisory board, as we heard. I did not

          9  think it had ever been established. Certainly it's

         10  not in existence.

         11                 We believe that, and the ASPCA would

         12  be happy to serve on that Committee, or just to

         13  offer advice to the Department of Health. We have

         14  certified behaviorists on staff, we certainly

         15  provide different plans or courses of action for

         16  dogs that might have some behavioral problems.

         17  Certainly, and this again is in the dangerous dog

         18  law, it addresses severe attacks, causing severe

         19  injuries to people. And in that instance, the

         20  Commissioner is authorized to order that the animal

         21  be euthanized.

         22                 The Commissioner is also authorized,

         23  if let's say it wasn't such a severe attack, but in

         24  the case of the, I think it was a Chowowa that was

         25  ordered to muzzled, and the owner didn't comply with
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          2  that, well there are follow-up steps that the

          3  Commissioner could have taken in that instance.

          4                 So, again, you know, the law is

          5  actually very good. In fact, the New York City law,

          6  which predated the New York State law, was actually

          7  much more progressive at the time, and the State

          8  kind of caught up with it.

          9                 So, we believe that the key to this,

         10  and we have seen this time and time again when we

         11  hear about dog attacks in the papers, is the law is

         12  not being enforced. And we don't need to start

         13  talking about breed-specific bans. You know, we know

         14  out there the problem dogs, and we need to nip it in

         15  the bud. And if a dog is really, really dangerous,

         16  then it may need to have to be put down. So, we

         17  think the key is get the Department to enforce it

         18  and inform the advisory board, and the ASPCA stands

         19  ready to help.

         20                 MS. MASSARO: Good afternoon. My name

         21  is Regina Massaro. I am the Director of the Spay

         22  Neuter Intervention Project. And in reference to Law

         23  498, all dogs presented for boarding must be --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Can you just move

         25  the mic a little closer to you?
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          2                 MS. MASSARO: Yes. Can you hear me

          3  now?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Yes.

          5                 MS. MASSARO: Okay. I don't have my

          6  glasses. I don't know if I can read this.

          7                 In reference to 498, all dogs

          8  presented for boarding must be up-to-date for parvo

          9  distemper vaccine, rabies vaccine and licensed.

         10                 Owners must present proof upon

         11  boarding the dog, the obvious reason being to

         12  protect against illness. But there is another reason

         13  why this is so important. All too often owners

         14  abandon their animals at boarding facilities, and in

         15  many instances the animal is sent to the New York

         16  City Center for Animal Care and Control.

         17                 Business owners have a responsibility

         18  to take every precaution to prevent illness and to

         19  resume responsibility should an animal be abandoned.

         20                 Businesses that have contracted with

         21  an owner cannot and should not be allowed to burden

         22  New York City taxpayers.

         23                 In reference to Bill 465, based on my

         24  experience there are two scenarios in New York City

         25  pertaining to dangerous dogs. The first being
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          2  individuals that train dogs to inflict harm on other

          3  animals.

          4                 The second scenario is that of an

          5  owner who does not abide by the leash law. There

          6  have been incidents when an unleashed dog has been

          7  injured or killed because one or both owners had

          8  failed to take necessary precautions to avoid such

          9  incident.

         10                 In situations where a dog is labeled

         11  dangerous, an owner should have the right to have

         12  the dog evaluated by an outside party and not

         13  realized solely on evaluation by the New York City

         14  Department of Health.

         15                 Sadly, it will be the animal that

         16  will pay with its life, whether it be the animal

         17  killed or that which did the killed, because those

         18  charged with enforcement have failed to protect

         19  them.

         20                 And I would like to just say

         21  something in reference to questions and statements

         22  that were made by the Council.

         23                 Yes, there is a law on the books.

         24  There really isn't need for another law or an

         25  amendment. The Department of Health is now charged
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          2  with enforcement of rabies and licensing, and that

          3  enforcement is not effective. They're basically

          4  doing nothing, and I believe Mr. Boyce made a

          5  statement that 200,000 dogs are licensed, but he

          6  failed to tell you how many are unlicensed. I

          7  believe it exceeds a million.

          8                 And also that the agency now, which

          9  is the Department of Health, it should be removed

         10  from them, and it should be the Department of

         11  Finance, the way we enforce traffic tickets, with

         12  Police Department, Health Department, Consumer

         13  Affairs and other agencies, particularly New York

         14  City Police Department as the parent agency

         15  enforcing the law.

         16                 Today there is no enforcement, and

         17  the problems that exist today I blame the New York

         18  City Department of Health. They are to blame. There

         19  is no enforcement whatsoever.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I want to ask a

         22  question of the ASPCA.

         23                 You know, one of the things that we

         24  talked about before, you know how you make a

         25  distinction of what provoked, et cetera, et cetera,
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          2  and can you give us a sense, given your vast

          3  experience working with animals, how often dogs bite

          4  as part of play? And when that happens, do these

          5  bites, when bites do happen as part of play,

          6  so-to-speak, do they usually cause damage to the

          7  other dog?

          8                 And do you have any, and you don't

          9  have to give it to us now, you can give it to us

         10  later, any recommendations on the language for our

         11  legislation to ensure that dog owners don't get

         12  unfairly punished when it's a playful act on the

         13  part of the dog?

         14                 MS. WEISBERG: Unfortunately I'm not a

         15  veterinarian or a behaviorist, so I would prefer to

         16  defer that to my colleagues and we can certainly get

         17  back to you on that.

         18                 But I understand that issue, and

         19  obviously, you know, we do need to make for those

         20  distinctions.

         21                 Presumably some of this would come

         22  out in the hearing process that the Department of

         23  Health is ordered to hold.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, thank you.

         25                 Council Member Sears, do you have any
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          2  questions?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: One question of

          4  either one of them actually.

          5                 And it may sound strange, but has

          6  there ever been something called like an amnesty so

          7  that people could register their dogs and not have

          8  any reciprocity because of that, but to free that?

          9                 And also, how is the senior

         10  population apprised that if they can no longer take

         11  care of their dog, what do they do?

         12                 We have housebound that have dog

         13  walkers. We have the senior citizens that can go off

         14  for just a short time. There are senior citizens

         15  that they can walk their dog, they can't pick up

         16  after their dog, so there are all kinds of

         17  populations with the elderly population.

         18                 So is there anything to your

         19  knowledge that is done to let them know of what's

         20  available if they cannot take care of their dog so

         21  that somebody like the ASPCA, or whatever, could?

         22                 Because what happens is they get on

         23  the streets and then they create all other kinds of

         24  problems.

         25                 I know there used to be just bands of
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          2  abandoned dogs where I used to job, and I had to

          3  stop doing that because you never know where they

          4  were coming from.

          5                 So, I think to try and help them to

          6  alleviate this very dangerous problem, and those

          7  bands are dogs upon dogs, they're get at anything

          8  and anything; do you know how it's done, if at all?

          9                 MS. WEISBERG: Well, I think there are

         10  two different issues here. In terms of animals, dogs

         11  that are being abandoned because the elderly person

         12  can no longer take care of the animal, I mean that

         13  really is against state law, but that's a function

         14  of animal control.

         15                 In terms of trying to assist the

         16  elderly so that they can keep the dog in the home,

         17  I'm not aware of any programs per say, but it's

         18  certainly something I will certainly bring back to

         19  my organization to see if we can form some kind of

         20  outreach program.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay. What does

         22  animal control do?

         23                 MS. WEISBERG: Well, animal control is

         24  supposed to pick up stray dogs and take in dogs that

         25  people no longer want, owners no longer want.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So then maybe

          3  the vehicle would be animal control to get somehow a

          4  message out, and we would know how to do that and

          5  the committee could be effective with that?

          6                 MS. WEISBERG: Sure.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Just whom they

          8  should go and look to?

          9                 MS. WEISBERG: Sure.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Because it

         11  would seem like it would help a lot of the problem.

         12                 You say there are so many unlicensed

         13  dogs.

         14                 MS. WEISBERG: Right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And a lot of

         16  them become abandoned.

         17                 MS. WEISBERG: Right.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: They really do.

         19  And that's happened in all five boroughs and it

         20  certainly is prevalent in Queens. So there must be

         21  something that the system could do that could help

         22  that and certainly reduce the violence of dogs upon

         23  dogs.

         24                 MS. WEISBERG: Right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Because there
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          2  comes a lot from those abandoned dogs as well.

          3                 MS. MASSARO: I'd like to say

          4  something about that, several statements that you

          5  made.

          6                 Spay Neuter Intervention Project is

          7  an organization that focuses primarily on spay and

          8  neutering junkyard dogs, and most people would think

          9  they are dangerous, but they are not. They're merely

         10  in abundance. Pitbulls, Rotweilers and Shepard mixes

         11  that have the unfortunately life of living on the

         12  other side of the tracks. They were born in a

         13  certain neighborhood, you know, and not everyone

         14  cares about these animals.

         15                 So, we have taken it upon ourselves

         16  and we're funded and we spay and neuter these

         17  junkyard dogs and return them to their owners. Many

         18  of them, if not all of them, are not abused.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: How do you

         20  return them to their owners if they're junkyard

         21  dogs? How do you know who the owners are?

         22                 MS. MASSARO: Well, they're owned by

         23  business owners. They're owned by Joe's Body Shop,

         24  Mechanic Shop. A junkyard dog is basically a

         25  business dog that's owned by a junkyard owner.

                                                            75

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So then is the

          3  owner held responsible for the cost of the neutering

          4  and spaying?

          5                 MS. MASSARO: Well, unfortunately the

          6  City is not, and, again, it goes back to the

          7  Department of Health, is not doing its job. So

          8  organizations such as the Spay Neuter Intervention

          9  Project and individual organizations, grassroots,

         10  have stepped forward. And I personally speak to the

         11  owners. I'm funded. Bob Barker from the Price is

         12  Right, DJ&C Foundation purchased a brand new vehicle

         13  for us. We've customized it, and we go all along

         14  Atlantic Avenue to the strip, and I speak to John,

         15  Mike and whomever owns a dog, and I offer him a free

         16  spay and neutering and then I bring it to the ASPCA

         17  mobile spay neuter van and I have it spayed and I

         18  bring it back to the owner. And why did I do that?

         19  So it never walks through the doors of the CACC.

         20                 The problem is that in New York City,

         21  the junkyard dog is the root cause of dog over

         22  population, and the business owners are not obeying

         23  the law pertaining to rabies and licensing. They

         24  should have their dogs licensed. And if it's a

         25  business owner, then that license fee should be
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          2  higher. Just like if you have a vehicle and you're

          3  commercial and residential. You pay a higher fee, a

          4  higher registration fee.

          5                 It comes down to, Council Member

          6  Sears, something very simple: The New York City

          7  Department of Health does not effectively enforce

          8  the law. It is that simple.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: It seems to me

         10  that this is such a complex issue that to hold one

         11  Department responsible I don't think is quite fair.

         12                 I think that junkyard dogs, and your

         13  explanation of that, the fact that there are those

         14  that are not licensed, it's an overwhelming problem

         15  for the Department of Health, it's an overwhelming

         16  problem for the City of New York, and I think that

         17  in listening to you and having some things said that

         18  I didn't know before, is that it needs to be pulled

         19  together, and who is the umbrella agency to do that?

         20  I don't know. I'm not getting involved in the

         21  operations of it, I'm just looking at what the

         22  problems are, how they arise, and how we can deal

         23  with that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Let me, just for

         25  the information of the Committee and the folks who
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          2  are concerned as well, later on in the spring the

          3  Committee is going to have a broader oversight on

          4  the Center for Animal Care and Control and larger

          5  animal issues as well. So, I think the line of

          6  questioning is very helpful in indicating some

          7  things that we should have some pre-meetings on

          8  before that hearing to make sure we have questions

          9  and answers to.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay. Thank you

         11  very much.

         12                 MS. MASSARO: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You can keep

         14  going, I just wanted you to know that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: No, that's

         16  fine. That just cleared it up. But I just think that

         17  it has to be a more inclusive situation to this,

         18  even though the Department of Health may be the

         19  agency, but it seems to me that the issue has become

         20  so complex and so enlarged that we have to look at

         21  what can be included with the Department of Health

         22  so that they could deal with this.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And also, I just

         24  want to add, in the spring we need to look at it

         25  Citywide but also from a borough perspective. The
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          2  resources are not evenly distributed amongst the

          3  boroughs, and that really can end up making problems

          4  worse in some boroughs.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That's very

          6  true. Certainly Queens is one of them.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you both

          9  very much.

         10                 I just wanted to ask, is Garo Arzani

         11  in? I'm sorry if I'm saying that wrong here.

         12                 Is Verma Gingold here? No, okay.

         13                 Now I'm going to call up John

         14  Ziegler, Dr. Robert Cohen and Jill Lauri.

         15                 And is Dr. John Sangiorio here? You

         16  are. Okay, why don't you come on up as well.

         17                 These are the last four people we

         18  have scheduled to testify. If there is someone here

         19  who wanted to testify and we didn't call your name,

         20  please see the Sergeant for a witness slip,

         21  otherwise these are the last four.

         22                 And I'm going to let the gentleman

         23  from the Veterinary Association go first, just

         24  because you were supposed to be on the last panel.

         25                 And whenever anyone is testifying, if
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          2  you could just state your name for the record before

          3  you start, that is very helpful.

          4                 DR. SANGIORGIO: My name is John

          5  Sangiorgio. I'm a veterinarian. I practice in Staten

          6  Island, New York, and I'm a member of the Veterinary

          7  Medical Association of New York City, on the

          8  executive board, and today I'm testifying on their

          9  behalf.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         11                 DR. SANGIORGIO: Okay. As far as

         12  Intro. 198, after carefully considering 198, the

         13  Veterinary Medical Association of New York City has

         14  given its support to this bill.

         15                 The Veterinary Medical Association of

         16  New York City represents over 200 practicing

         17  veterinarians in five boroughs. The reason for the

         18  support is both founded in public and animal health.

         19  We support this legislation for the following

         20  reasons:

         21                 It has long been recognized that a

         22  high concentration of animals, including humans,

         23  facilitates the transmission of infections and

         24  infestations. The American Veterinary Medical

         25  Association has set minimum standards for laboratory
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          2  animals. Pets in boarding kennels should have at

          3  least some standards.

          4                 Unprotected animals are more

          5  susceptible to disease and can become vectors for

          6  human infection. High concentration of feces and

          7  urine can provoke asthmatic type reactions in

          8  humans, and leptospirosis and rabies are zoonotic

          9  diseases.

         10                 These are some of the reasons we

         11  support Intro. 498. We urge the Committee also to

         12  give consideration to the following:

         13                 The amount of space allotted for each

         14  animal. The establishment of a cleaning schedule.

         15  The number of air changes based on animal

         16  concentrations. And external parasite control plan.

         17  And an evacuation fire in case of a fire or other

         18  problems.

         19                 We thank the City Council members who

         20  introduced this bill and we feel this bill will help

         21  the animals handlers, owners and people of New York

         22  City. Thank you for your attention.

         23                 As far as Intro. 465 goes, after

         24  careful consideration of Intro. 465, the Veterinary

         25  Medical Association of New York City has decided to
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          2  support this bill.

          3                 The Veterinary Medical Association of

          4  New York City represents over 200 practicing

          5  veterinarians in five boroughs.

          6                 The reason for our support is as

          7  follows:

          8                 The incidence of animal damage to

          9  other animals is frequent. These incidents are more

         10  common in spring or fall.

         11                 At present, the recourse of the

         12  owners is only small claims courts and damages could

         13  range from $300 to $3,000 and a law governing

         14  liability will be able to guide judges and law

         15  enforcement agents.

         16                 We thank the City Council members who

         17  introduced this bill, and we feel this bill will

         18  help animals, owners and people of New York City.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 We'll just go across the table, if

         22  that's okay? Thanks.

         23                 MR. ZIEGLER: My name is John Ziegler,

         24  and I'd like to thank the Council for inviting me to

         25  testify today.
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          2                 Biscuits & Bath is a leading provider

          3  of services in New York City for dogs and their

          4  parents. With over 15 years of experience caring for

          5  dogs in a loving manner, we have significant

          6  experience in providing an environment that is safe,

          7  healthy and fun.

          8                 We currently operate three doggy gyms

          9  in New York City where we offer services including

         10  day care, night care, grooming, dog walking,

         11  training and adoptions.

         12                 Our philosophy is that dogs require

         13  exercise and socialization to be truly happy and

         14  healthy house mates.

         15                 As a result, we have created a unique

         16  environment that encourages cageless, off-leach play

         17  with dogs and all breeds. The number one reason that

         18  this concept works and that our ultimate clients,

         19  the dogs, love to come to Bisquits and Bath and

         20  socialize with their friends, is the fact that

         21  Bisquits and Bath is able to provide this play in

         22  socialization where they may not otherwise get it.

         23                 In addition to caring for a wide

         24  variety of dogs living in stable and loving homes,

         25  Bisquits and Bath has created a unique concept in
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          2  dog adoptions.

          3                 We partner with New York City's

          4  Animal Care and Control to save dogs' lives and help

          5  solve the major problem that New York City faces

          6  every day.

          7                 Each dog is rescued from a dire

          8  situation, spayed or neutered, vaccinated and then

          9  lives in our cage-free environment with all the

         10  other dogs at Bisquits and Bath until a loving home

         11  is found.

         12                 In each of our locations we dedicate

         13  storefront space for adoption dogs, to ensure that

         14  they get the maximum possible exposure when they are

         15  not running and playing with the other dogs.

         16                 In order for us to offer this unique

         17  environment that encourages off-leash play and

         18  socialization, and allows dogs rescued off the

         19  street to interact with other dogs in the same

         20  manner, it is imperative for us at Bisquits and Bath

         21  to offer the safest setting possible.

         22                 As a result we set very high

         23  standards for those dogs in our care. Each dog must

         24  be spayed or neutered, fully vaccinated against

         25  rabies, distemper, parvo and bordatello, and has to
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          2  be temperament tested.

          3                 In addition, all of the dogs in our

          4  care are supervised at all times and dogs who are

          5  not properly social are not permitted into our

          6  facility.

          7                 These are requirements that we have

          8  had in place since our first Bisquits and Bath Doggy

          9  Gym opened almost seven years ago and they have

         10  served us very well.

         11                 Overall, the rate of incidents at our

         12  Doggy Gym is extremely low, and we are confident

         13  that it compares very favorably to other locations

         14  where dogs do play together.

         15                 While no system is foolproof while

         16  dealing with live animals, this allows us to provide

         17  a very high level of service that is safe and

         18  promotes health and well-being of all dogs.

         19                 While we are not a kennel, we are

         20  currently doing significantly more than the proposed

         21  legislation contemplates on our own accord.

         22                 We are supportive of legislation that

         23  further fosters the safety and health of all dogs.

         24                 As dog lovers and people who view our

         25  own dogs as our children, we cannot imagine an
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          2  environment where dogs that are together are not

          3  fully vaccinated and spayed or neutered.

          4                 To us this issue goes beyond merely a

          5  public health issue and is really one of love and

          6  compassion.

          7                 In addition, as a leading provider of

          8  dog care services to New York City and their

          9  parents, and an innovator in our field, Bisquits'

         10  staff is very interested in extending our

         11  partnership with the City to help solve many of the

         12  public health and financial issues.

         13                 Bisquits and Bath is very interested

         14  in forging a close alliance on a number of possible

         15  programs, including dog license registrations,

         16  microchip events, spay and neuter events and aiding

         17  in public awareness regarding topical issues.

         18                 As leaders in the dog community, we

         19  are committed to making New York a city in which

         20  people and dogs can live together in health, safety

         21  and prosperity.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. You can

         24  use that one.

         25                 MS. LAURI: Do I press something?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If the light is

          3  off, the mic is on.

          4                 MS. LAURI: My name is Jill Lauri. I'm

          5  a psychotherapist, and one of the areas I specialize

          6  in is working with people whose animals are either

          7  ill or have died, and sick animals mean a lot of

          8  pain and suffering for both the animals and their

          9  human companions. And through my work with clients,

         10  as well as with my own animals, I've had a lot of

         11  dealings with health issues among animals, and while

         12  I believe that the intention of Bill No. 498 is

         13  positive, I have a problem with the time periods

         14  that are listed in Section 17-366. I think that they

         15  do not take into account the most up-to-date

         16  information about vaccines effectiveness.

         17                 Studies done by Dr. Ronald Schultz,

         18  of the University of Wisconsin School of Veterinary

         19  Medicine have proven that distemper, hepatitis, and

         20  parvo virus vaccines protect for at least seven

         21  years.

         22                 Many vets fail to disclose this

         23  information to their clients, and in fact they have

         24  a financial incentive to do so. And because of this,

         25  many animals are over-vaccinated.
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          2                 Representative Peter Rhines of

          3  Wisconsinite Maine, has introduced legislation, and

          4  it's LR 883, to require vets to provide vaccine

          5  disclosure forms to clients so that they can make an

          6  informed choice for their animals.

          7                 Over-vaccination does not mean extra

          8  safety. In fact, it's linked to a variety of

          9  illnesses, including cancer.

         10                 One option is something called

         11  titering, in which you test the blood samples to

         12  determine if antibodies generated by the original

         13  vaccines are still active. So, in other words,

         14  you're actually doing a test to see whether the

         15  animal is still protected from the diseases.

         16                 I'd like to ask the Council members a

         17  question. Let's say that you were vaccinated against

         18  a disease three years ago, and I could tell you that

         19  you were protected against getting that disease for

         20  another at least four years, but if you had the

         21  vaccine again at this point there might be side

         22  effects. What choice would you make? And what I'm

         23  asking is that we give that same benefit to our

         24  animals.

         25                 One possibility, one suggestion I
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          2  have to revising the legislation in the form it's

          3  currently in, is to eliminate the specific time

          4  periods of the three years and the six months for

          5  the various diseases and replace that with a

          6  requirement for certification from a licensed

          7  veterinarian that the animal is currently protected

          8  from these particular diseases.

          9                 Intro. No. 498, in its current form,

         10  will lead to over-vaccination and health issues for

         11  animals, in contrast to the protection that it is

         12  intended to provide.

         13                 So, I ask the Council members to

         14  reconsider the particular time period section, and

         15  to consult with veterinarians and experts at the

         16  cutting edge, who are willing to put the health of

         17  our animals first.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 DR. COHEN: I'm one of those

         20  veterinarians. My name is Robert Cohen, and I come

         21  here today to tell you that I think both of these

         22  bills are worthy of the Council's time.

         23                 I've submitted some testimony. I'm

         24  just going to paraphrase it because of timing and

         25  all that.

                                                            89

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 But first of all, the above

          3  amendments reflect the good intentions of the City

          4  Council to protect the health of our overall

          5  community, which includes pet owners and their pets,

          6  and these pets play a major role in the wellness of

          7  families and often hold a place in the family

          8  infrastructure with equal importance to the people

          9  they live with.

         10                 The bond between pets and people is

         11  strong enough that it can bring tears to the eyes of

         12  children and virtually every adult who walks by a

         13  pet store and markedly even to the old man who

         14  recalls his childhood a timeless bond, and I think

         15  Cindy Adams talked about that brilliantly today.

         16                 When an adult pet owner entrusts

         17  their dog or cat to a boarding kennel or a pet

         18  hotel, it is no different than leaving any other

         19  non-adult member of your family at an overnight

         20  facility. It's a huge responsibility and the City

         21  Council has stepped up to understand that.

         22                 A pet owner is relinquishing

         23  responsibility of a family member and often

         24  distressing experience. It is similar to when I drop

         25  my kids off at sleep-away camp, I was glad to see
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          2  them go but nervous at the same time.

          3                 Clearly, it is the responsibility of

          4  the pet owner also to interview the management and

          5  inspect the boarding facility before leaving their

          6  pet. And the facilities should allow for unannounced

          7  visitation and inspection of the facility to

          8  encourage good health.

          9                 Responsible kennels freely

         10  acknowledge and willingly accept the serious

         11  responsibility involved in someone's beloved pet,

         12  and the testimony speaks about things that have

         13  already been talked about today, that respect and

         14  kindness is an important part of what we need to

         15  make sure happens, sanitary environment and vigilant

         16  supervision, making sure the temperature -- animals

         17  are air cool engines, so they need to have an

         18  environment which turns a lot of air, as Johnson and

         19  JoJo said, and that making sure that they're

         20  comfortable.

         21                 And I think whether or not vaccines

         22  are given one year or two years or seven years, the

         23  American Veterinary Medical Association, the New

         24  York State Veterinary Medical Society of New York

         25  City Association and the American Animal Hospital
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          2  Association have very clear standards on what they

          3  are, and I think they are more expert than I am for

          4  sure.

          5                 I've submitted some pictures of

          6  boarding facilities that we own and operate. I've

          7  owned and operated as many as 17 animal hospitals

          8  and boarding facilities at different times.

          9                 The most important thing that I would

         10  like to say to day, in 27 years of practice, and in

         11  the 17 facilities that I've owned, seven of which in

         12  New York City, I have never had anybody come from

         13  the Department of Health and ask us any questions

         14  about anything anyhow, not once.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Not one yearly

         16  visit?

         17                 DR. COHEN: Not one visit in 27 years.

         18  And that's amazing. I didn't even know there was a

         19  group that did that.

         20                 Now, of course we live up to those

         21  standards.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Well, thank you

         23  for telling us that, because they are no longer here

         24  but we will follow up with that on that point.

         25                 DR. COHEN: Yes. Right.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I didn't think to

          3  ask, because stupidly I -- you know, how many are

          4  there and how many do you do a year, but we will

          5  send a follow-up letter and ask that.

          6                 DR. COHEN: We have six facilities in

          7  the City of New York, to the best of my knowledge,

          8  and of course somebody might have slipped in the

          9  back door, but there's never been a form filled out,

         10  no signature, no anything.

         11                 The other thing that I'm concerned

         12  about in the statement was the number of dangerous

         13  dog-on-dog bites. I mean, clearly the definition,

         14  you don't need to be a veterinarian to realize

         15  what's dangerous and what's not. But we see in our

         16  one facility I work at on a daily basis, 7,000

         17  patients a year. And I did a computer check

         18  yesterday to see how many of those 7,000 patients

         19  are related to dog-on-dog bites, and we saw 120 last

         20  year. Now, we're one facility of hundreds in New

         21  York City, so it's a totally underestimated number

         22  that they've given you, and I'm surprised that they

         23  were so naive' about it.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you, all,
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          2  very much. You know, this panel and the panel before

          3  raised some interesting additional ideas that we

          4  should look into, and obviously some information

          5  about DOH that we need to follow up on. And thank

          6  you for running such a great facility in my

          7  district, so your logo is very familiar.

          8                 So, unless Council Member Stewart has

          9  a question for you, thank you all very much.

         10                 Did you want to add something?

         11                 DR. SANGIORGIO: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, you just

         13  need to take the mic, these things are taped.

         14                 DR. SANGIORGIO: I'm sorry. I just had

         15  a comment.

         16                 Earlier the Councilwoman asked about

         17  the elderly and who informs them. St. Vincent's

         18  Hospital in Manhattan has a program when they

         19  hospitalized elderly persons to take care of their

         20  pets. I know because the New York City Veterinary

         21  Medical Association is involved with that program.

         22  But it may serve as a model for the elderly, because

         23  they need the attention most when they're brought

         24  into a facility, and I know St. Vincent's has that

         25  in New York.
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          2                 As far as the definition, somebody

          3  mentioned before the difference between domestic and

          4  companion animals, and I agree with them. Domestic

          5  animals are usually cattle, horses, things like

          6  that, so you may want to change the wording.

          7                 And on the wording of 498, at one

          8  point, and I don't have it in front of me now, there

          9  was an exception for distemper vaccine, and that

         10  should be all vaccines and you may even want to

         11  include titers, because that's a good idea also.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you all very

         13  much.

         14                 Before you all leave, we just want to

         15  make sure we have all of your contact information,

         16  if Gelvina can have it.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Madam Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Councilman

         19  Stewart.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I'm sorry I

         21  was away, but I would want to know what you folks

         22  think about with the high incidence of vicious

         23  attacks by dogs and dogs-on-dogs, dogs-on-humans,

         24  and dogs on other animals, and even damage to other

         25  properties and things like that, what is your

                                                            95

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  opinion, and what is your take on the fact that you

          3  should have some sort of liability insurance if you

          4  have a pet? And it based on the fact if a Pitbull or

          5  one of those big dogs, you figure the cost of the

          6  liability insurance would be more than if you had a

          7  poodle or a dog that is not coming into contact with

          8  other people, what is your take on that?

          9                 DR. COHEN: Well, to me it's a safety

         10  issue more than it is an economic issue. I realize

         11  why you need liability insurance, by dog-on-dog, as

         12  a veterinarian, my point of view is that you've got

         13  to take the offender out of the way. And that same

         14  dog that viciously attacked another dog can

         15  viciously attack a person, the same kind of mindset.

         16                 But, you know, liability insurance,

         17  most people that come to us that have an issue with

         18  liability, the owners carry liability insurance in

         19  their homes or that's in most situations. In other

         20  situations, it would bee good to have a separate

         21  policy, and it could be staged for different kinds

         22  of animals. But I encourage you to realize that it's

         23  more likely in my practice, in seeing 7,000 patients

         24  a year, more likely that I will be bitten by a

         25  Chowawa than I will by a Pitbull, because my guard
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          2  is up for a Pitbull, and less so of a tiny dog. So,

          3  I wouldn't want it to be staged based on size or

          4  shape or, you know.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: But first of

          6  all, insurance cost is usually based on incident.

          7                 The other thing I want to look at is

          8  that you're talking about dogs that may attack

          9  someone, and that someone has very little recourse

         10  or being able to recoup anything. You may have

         11  hospital bills of hospital bills of $5,000.

         12                 DR. COHEN: Right.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: But then to

         14  get anything, you've got to take this person to

         15  court, and that person may not have anything. But if

         16  they have liability insurance, that will be taken

         17  care of and that's what I'm looking at. Because

         18  there are so many people who get damaged, and there

         19  is very little recourse they have.

         20                 DR. COHEN: No, it's an excellent

         21  point, but the loaded gun still has to be taken out

         22  of the crime, and the loaded gun is the dog.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes.

         24                 DR. COHEN: Realizing the economic

         25  impact, too.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes.

          3                 DR. COHEN: But the safety issue is

          4  the primary responsibility. And I would encourage

          5  the liability insurance for separate pets, sure.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And the most

          7  folks who have dogs today, it's not necessarily a

          8  home owner, it's people who live in an apartment.

          9                 DR. COHEN: Right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And they

         11  don't have the space for dogs. So, dogs, they come

         12  in contact, they come in contact with people much

         13  more frequent than if you had your own back yard and

         14  all of that. And so, with that in mind people get

         15  damaged by dogs and there's no recourse.

         16                 DR. COHEN: I think probably it's less

         17  than 20 percent of all dogs in New York City have a

         18  license. If those dogs were licensed, there would be

         19  less of an issue completely. But veterinarians need

         20  to step up to the plate too and make sure that every

         21  patient that they see has a license, and it seems

         22  like an obvious way for the City to raise money, for

         23  the liability issue as well as others, by making it

         24  part of a law that veterinarians make sure that

         25  their pets that they see have licenses. No one ever
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          2  asks us, we never tell.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: What about --

          4  is that a way that we can legislate that, that

          5  veterinarian only treat dogs that are licensed, and

          6  if they're not licensed --

          7                 DR. COHEN: We have --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: -- Make sure

          9  that they're licensed there.

         10                 DR. COHEN: No, every dog needs to be

         11  treated by a veterinarian that comes in that's not

         12  healthy, and there shouldn't be -- sometimes there

         13  are reasons why they are not, but it would be a

         14  reasonable thing to expect that veterinarians would

         15  encourage dog owners to get the dogs licensed, and

         16  it's a way for the City to raise money.

         17                 MR. ZIEGLER: I would add to that and

         18  say for the pet stores specifically who are selling

         19  pets, a lot of them coming from puppy mills outside

         20  of the City, requiring them to have the registration

         21  already filled out to each new perspective parent,

         22  that would be a good way of generating income for

         23  the City, as well as getting that 20 percent up to

         24  at least 30 or 40 percent.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes, but what
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          2  I'm asking you, if you think that should be

          3  legislated?

          4                 MR. ZIEGLER: I certainly do.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: In other

          6  words, make it mandatory for if a veterinarian is

          7  treating a dog, that he must put down their license

          8  number, and if there is no license number, and all

          9  of that, then there should be added cost, like he

         10  collects the money, to make sure that dog is

         11  licensed.

         12                 MR. ZIEGLER: I think that's a good

         13  idea. I do. It's a personal response. It's not

         14  representing anybody but myself.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: But if

         16  they're not even dealing with licensure, to that

         17  extent, I don't see them doing it for liability, and

         18  so everybody shrugs the responsibility, and it's

         19  only when you're on the receiving end that you're

         20  concerned. You know, you haven't been bitten by a

         21  dog yet, so you're not that concerned. As soon as

         22  your child or somebody has been bitten by a dog, and

         23  you say, listen, this is an added expense for you.

         24  My insurance, I don't have any insurance right now,

         25  I don't have this, I don't have that, and it just
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          2  took $10,000 for me to take care of my little son,

          3  and how do I recoup that? Do I have to sue that

          4  person? When I sue that person, oh, they don't have

          5  anything. They don't even have -- you understand

          6  what I'm saying? So, I'm looking to protect that

          7  victim. And I want to see, because there's got to be

          8  a way to protect victims.

          9                 DR. SANGIORGIO: I understand you're

         10  concerned about protecting the victims, and not

         11  everybody has home owner's insurance that would

         12  cover their pet in the case of an attack.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Exactly.

         14                 DR. SANGIORGIO: And unfortunately,

         15  especially in some areas of the City, a dog attack

         16  is going to be, the dog is going to be owned by

         17  somebody who doesn't have insurance and has no

         18  coverage for this.

         19                 What you may want to consider is if

         20  we enforce the licensing act a little bit more,

         21  which because if we're talking about 20 percent of

         22  the animals being licensed, there's no enforcement.

         23  I mean, those are the people who voluntarily license

         24  their animals. And as far as enforcement, I don't

         25  think you should turn to the veterinarians who are
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          2  not professional enforcers. I mean, you have a

          3  professional Police Department in the City.

          4                 Also, what you may want to consider,

          5  people who don't have liability insurance, some type

          6  of fund set up by adding another $2.00 to the

          7  license, make it an even $10.00 instead of 8.50,

          8  $1.50 add to this, and this is a liability fund for

          9  people.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right.

         11                 DR. SANGIORGIO: I mean, something

         12  like this would be more in the legislative capacity

         13  than to get a group of scientists basically,

         14  doctors, to try and enforce the law.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I look at TV

         16  a lot in terms of animals, and I see we have the

         17  animal police, all right? We have animal police, but

         18  most of the time all the animal police does is

         19  basically look for the animals that are being

         20  starved or in danger of health. They don't look to

         21  see whether they are licensed or these kind of

         22  things.

         23                 MR. ZIEGLER: The revenue is there, if

         24  you look at it economically. If --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I think the
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          2  revenue is there --

          3                 MR. ZIEGLER: If it's less than 20

          4  percent, dogs are being licensed. And if you walk

          5  down Park Avenue on a Sunday morning, you can easily

          6  come across probably about 300 or 400 dogs that are

          7  unlicensed, and that's $100 ticket, you do the math

          8  and that's probably three hours of an officer's

          9  time.

         10                 So, if you do the economics, it can

         11  generate more than enough revenue to help enforce

         12  the issues and give the money to the Department of

         13  Health to help enforce a lot of the issues and go

         14  after a lot of these, you know, the kennels that are

         15  operating without, you know, mandatory vaccinations

         16  and all these other issues.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right,

         18  are we the same as the other states? Do we have

         19  animal police like some of the other states that I

         20  see? I have never seen an animal police here, you

         21  know, going out and inspecting. I see dogs in the

         22  park, dogs all over the place, and I've never seen

         23  animal police in New York City.

         24                 MR. ZIEGLER: I wouldn't go by animal

         25  police, I would just say there is a lot of foot
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          2  patrolmen all over --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right, but

          4  they don't necessarily -- I don't see that as their

          5  job. I'm comparing to what I see on TV, that the

          6  animal police, they go specifically looking for

          7  anything to do with animals.

          8                 MR. ZIEGLER: I think you're talking

          9  about four or five people.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I think, Council

         11  Member Stewart, this spring we're going to have an

         12  oversight hearing on the Center for Animal Care and

         13  Control on larger DOH and Center for Animal Care and

         14  Control issues, and we should get more specifics on

         15  that in preparation for that hearing.

         16                 There might be a handful of people

         17  who are kind of animal enforcement personnel within

         18  the Center for Animal Care and Control. But it's

         19  certainly not, if it exists at all, and I actually

         20  don't know the answer, we'll find out, it's

         21  insignificant people, the number of people.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: But I think

         23  there is a lot of revenue that could be made from

         24  there.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Absolutely.
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          2  Absolutely. Absolutely. Absolutely.

          3                 And another question is, I don't know

          4  if it's an answer in preparation for the next

          5  hearing, what role or training the Parks Enforcement

          6  Police get on this issue, because they're certainly,

          7  in lieu of creating another universe of people,

          8  they're more on the way than NYPD might be the best

          9  people, you know, to address these issues, so we'll

         10  raise that with the Parks' Chair and with the

         11  Department as we get ready for the next hearing.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Because the

         13  NYPD in general are afraid of dogs.

         14                 They are afraid of dogs. I'm serious.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Well, on that

         16  note, and with the note that Gelvina, the Counsel,

         17  wrote saying that her legal career had clearly gone

         18  to the dogs, we're going to adjourn this hearing.

         19  Thank you all very much.

         20                 (Hearing concluded at 3:40 p.m.)
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